
 

 

Regular Council Meeting 

January 27, 2025 

Executive Summary 
 

Item # Summary 

9A-B Description: Items for Action by Unanimous Consent 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the consent agenda 
as presented. 
 

10A Description: Third Ward Councilmember 
 
Recommended Action: Deliberation and selection of Third 
Ward Councilmember. 
 

10B Description: Purchase of Wildland Protective Clothing 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the purchase of 
eleven (11) sets of Wildland Protective Clothing from Axes and 
Iron as part of the VCF (Volunteer Fire Capacity) grant from DNR 
at the cost of $10,670.73. 

10C Description: YMCA Recreation Agreement 2025-2026 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the two-year City 
Recreation Agreement with YMCA for the total sum of $70,000. 



 

Item # Summary 

10D Description: Resolution 2025-01 E. State Street Improvements 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve Resolution 2025-01 
to enter agreement with MDOT for Surface Transportation 
Improvements on East State Street. 
 

 



Council Agenda  Page 1 of 2 January 27, 2025 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  

 
City Council Agenda 

January 27, 2025 
 
 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:00 PM 

2. Roll call 

3. Pledge to the flag 

√        4. Approval of the agenda 

√        5. Approval of the minutes of the January 13, 2025, regular meeting 

√        6. Public Hearings:  

7. Public Comment: 

8. Formal Recognitions and Presentations: 

A. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner. 

B. Presentation from Jon Sporer, YMCA CEO/Executive Director. 

√        9. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent:  

*                   A. Consider request from Erin Quada, Youth Services Librarian for Hastings Public 
Library, to host a “Touch a Truck” event for the Summer Reading Program on 
Wednesday, June 11, 2025, in Parking Lot 3. 

*                   B. Motion to hold a Council workshop on February 10, 2025, at 6:00 PM to discuss 
Council’s goals for the upcoming fiscal year.  

√        10. Items of Business: 

*                   A. Deliberation and selection of Third Ward Councilmember. 

*                   B. Motion to approve the purchase of 11 sets of wildland protective clothing from  
Axes and Iron as part of the VFC (Volunteer Fire Capacity) grant from DNR, for 
the total cost of $10,670.73. 

*                   C. Motion to approve the two-year Recreation Agreement with the YMCA for the 
total sum of $70,000. 

*                   D. Motion to approve Resolution 2025-01 to enter an agreement with MDOT for 
Surface Transportation Improvements on East State Street. 

 



Council Agenda  Page 2 of 2 January 27, 2025 

11. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions: 

A.      Purchase Ordinance Amendment Consideration 
 

12. City Manager Report: 

*                   A. Police Chief Boulter Monthly and Annual Reports 
*                   B. City Clerk/Treasurer Perin Monthly Financial Reports 
*                   C. Community Development Director King Monthly and Annual Reports 

√        13. Reports and Communications: 

*                   A. DRAFT DDA Meeting Minutes – January 16, 2025 

14. Public Comment: 

15. Mayor and Council comment: 

16. Closed Session 

A. Consider recessing to closed session at the conclusion of regular business as 
permitted by PA 267 of 1976, Section 15.268-8(h) to consider material exempt 
from disclosure by state or federal statue (to receive privileged attorney-client 
communication). 

 
17. Adjourn 

 
* Items with enclosures. 
√ Motion under agenda heading requires roll call vote. 
 
 

Guidelines for Public Comment 
 

Public Comment is welcomed and appreciated. Please follow these simple guidelines to ensure all have 
an opportunity to be heard. 
 
All comments and questions will be made through the chair. All comments will be made in a courteous 
and civil manner; profanity and personal attacks will not be tolerated. Please limit the length of your 
comments to 3 minutes. If you are a member of a group, please appoint a spokesperson to speak on 
behalf of the group (those speaking on behalf of a group may be provided additional time). Please 
state your name before offering comment. 



4502 
 

Council Minutes  January 13, 2025 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  

 
City Council Minutes 

January 13, 2025 
 
 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:00 PM 

2. Oaths of Office: 

A. Jon Rocha – City Council 1st Ward Councilmember 
 

B. John Resseguie – City Council 2nd Ward Councilmember 
 

C. Jordan Brehm – City Council 4th Ward Councilmember 
 

3. Roll call  

Council members Present: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, 
Stenzelbarton and Tossava. 

City Staff and Appointees Present: Moyer-Cale, Boulter, Edelman, Jordan, King, Perin 
and Tate. 

 
4. Pledge to the flag 

5. Approval of the agenda 

Motion by Brehm, with support from McLean, to approve the agenda as presented. 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
6. Mayor’s Address 

7. Elect Mayor Pro Tem 

Motion by Barlow, with support from Brehm, to nominate John Resseguie as Mayor Pro 
Tem. 
 
Motion by Rocha, with support from McLean, to elect John Resseguie as Mayor Pro Tem. 

 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
8. Approval of the minutes of the December 18, 2024 regular meeting 

Motion by Stenzelbarton, with support from Barlow, to approve the minutes of the 
December 18, 2024 regular meeting. 



4503 
 

Council Minutes  January 13, 2025 

All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

9. Public Hearings: (None) 

10. Public Comment: (None) 

11. Formal Recognitions and Presentations: 

A. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner. 
 
B. Presentation from Justin Smith, Hammond Hill Disc Golf Update. 

 
(Justin Smith unable to attend. Will reschedule presentation.) 

 
12. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent: 

A. Consider request from Justin Smith to approve Hammond Hills Disk Golf 
Tournaments as presented. 

 
Motion by Nesbitt, with support from McLean, to approve Hammond Hills Disk Golf 
Tournaments as presented. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
B. Appoint Jessica Wood (and Dickinson Wright) as attorney for the City of Hastings 

and appoint Bloom Sluggett as attorneys for the City for code enforcement legal 
services. 

 
Motion by Resseguie, with support from Nesbitt, to appoint Jessica Wood (and 
Dickinson Wright) as attorney for the City of Hastings and appoint Bloom Sluggett as 
attorneys for the City for code enforcement legal services. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
C. Receive and place on file twenty (20) invoices totaling $247,969.53. 

 
Motion by McLean, with support from Resseguie, to receive and place on file twenty 
(20) invoices totaling $247,969.53. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
13. Items of Business. 



4504 
 

Council Minutes  January 13, 2025 

A. Consider second reading and adoption of Ordinance #627 amending the 
Woodlawn Meadows Planned Unit Development (PUD). 

 
Motion by McLean, with support from Barlow, to table second reading and adoption 
of Ordinance #627 amending the Woodlawn Meadows Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) until February 24, 2025 Council meeting. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 
 

B. Consider the adoption of City Council Rules of Procedure for 2025. 
 

Motion by Brehm, with support from McLean, to adopt the City Council Rules of 
Procedure for 2025. 
 
Discussion held regarding Dress Code.  
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and Tossava 
Nays: Nesbitt 
Motion carried. 

 
C. Consider 2025 Public Notice Calendar of regular Council meetings as the second and 

fourth Mondays of each month. 
 

Motion by Brehm, with support from Resseguie, to adopt 2025 Public Notice 
Calendar of regular Council meetings as the second and fourth Mondays of each 
month. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
D. Consider Mayor’s 2025 Boards and Commissions recommendations for appointment 

with the consent of Council. 
 

Motion by Stenzelbarton, with support from Resseguie, to approve Mayor’s 2025 
Boards and Commissions recommendations for appointment with the consent of 
Council. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
E. Consider request to accept and place on file the 2024 Planning Commission Annual 

Report. 
 

Motion by Resseguie, with support from Nesbitt, to accept and place on file the 2024 
Planning Commission Annual Report. 

 



4505 
 

Council Minutes  January 13, 2025 

Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
F. Consider request to authorize City Staff to prepare a notice informing the public of 

the availability to purchase parcel #08-55-240-105-00 and authorize the City 
Manager to negotiate offers for the sale of the parcel. 

 
Motion by Nesbitt, with support from Brehm, to authorize City Staff to prepare a 
notice informing the public of the availability to purchase parcel #08-55-240-105-00 
and authorize the City Manager to negotiate offers for the sale of the parcel. 
 
Discussion held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
G. Consider request for funds to cover the cost of sponsoring one Employed Recruit for 

the Spring 2025 Kellogg Community College Regional Police Academy, for total 
amount of $12,902.59. 

 
Motion by McLean, with support from Nesbitt, to authorize funds to cover the cost of 
sponsoring one Employed Recruit for the Spring 2025 Kellogg Community College 
Regional Police Academy, for total amount of $12,902.59. 
 
Discussion held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
H. Consider a motion to approve the Mannik Smith professional service fee for Michigan 

Avenue Bridge Repair project for the total amount of $27,000. 
 

Motion by Brehm, with support from Stenzelbarton, to approve the Mannik Smith 
professional service fee for Michigan Avenue Bridge Repair project for the total 
amount of $27,000. 
 
Discussion held. 
 
Ayes: Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and Tossava 
Nays: Barlow 
Motion carried. 

 
I. Consider a motion to authorize additional services from Civic Systems in an amount 

not to exceed $30,000. 



4506 
 

Council Minutes  January 13, 2025 

Motion by Resseguie, with support from McLean, to authorize additional services 
from Civic Systems in an amount not to exceed $30,000. 
 
Discussion held. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
J. Consider the request to approve Traffic Control Order #222. 

 
Motion by Stenzelbarton, with support from Rocha, to approve Traffic Control Order 
#222. 
 
Discussion held, with comments from Chelsey Foster, Senior Vice President at 
Highpoint Community Bank. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
K. Consider a motion to approve the City Manager and Fire Chief to execute a grant 

contract with the Department of Natural Resources to accept the 2025 Volunteer Fire 
Capacity (VFC) Grant of $10,000 with a 50% match. 

 
Motion by Nesbitt, with support from Brehm, to approve the City Manager and Fire 
Chief to execute a grant contract with the Department of Natural Resources to 
accept the 2025 Volunteer Fire Capacity (VFC) Grant of $10,000 with a 50% match. 
 
Ayes: Barlow, Brehm, McLean, Nesbitt, Resseguie, Rocha, Stenzelbarton and 
Tossava 
Nays: None 
Motion carried. 

 
14. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions (None) 

15. City Manager Report: 

Discussion held on MD7 merger with AT&T for leasing options on Communications 
Facility located at 107-A West Blair Street. Leasing Option #2 (Lump Sum Payment of 
$625,000 with fifty (50) year easement on property) was suggested for pursuit. 

   
A. Public Services Director Tate Annual Report 
B. Fire Chief Jordan Monthly Report 

 
Discussion held. 
 

C. Library Director Edelman Monthly Report  



4507 
 

Council Minutes  January 13, 2025 

 
16. Reports and Communications: 

A. Hastings Public Library Board of Trustees Draft Minutes – January 6, 2025. 
 

Motion by Stenzelbarton, with support from McLean, to accept and place on file  
item A. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
17. Public Comments: 

Comments from Adam Heikkila, owner of iGeek Repair and Gaming Center, about dress 
code conversation, and on open Council position. 
 

18. Mayor and Council comments: 

Comments shared by Rocha, Resseguie, McLean, Brehm, Barlow, Stenzelbarton and 
Nesbitt. 

 
19. Adjourn: 

Motion by Resseguie, with support from McLean, to adjourn meeting. 
 
All ayes. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 8:36 PM. 

 
 
 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
Read and Approved: 
 
 
 
________________________     ___________________________ 
David J. Tossava, Mayor      Linda Perin, City Clerk 
 

 
 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Mayor Tossava and City Council 

From: Dan King 

Subject: Hastings Public Library Touch a Truck Event 

Meeting Date: January 27, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve, under the direction of staff, Hastings Public Library’s request to conduct a 

Touch-a-Truck event in City Parking Lot #3 from 2:00 PM to 4:00 PM on Wednesday, June 11, 

2025. 

Background Information:  

The library is holding this event as part of its Summer Reading Program. This family-friendly 

event allows children of all ages to explore construction, farm, emergency, and other vehicles 

and equipment up close. 

Financial Implications:  

There are no financial implications for the City. 

Attachments: 

 Request Letter and Special Event Application

9A

















Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Set Council Goals Workshop Meeting for February 10, 2025 

Meeting Date: January 27, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to hold a Council workshop on February 10, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. to discuss Council’s goals 

for the upcoming fiscal year. 

Background Information:  

The City Council typically holds a workshop meeting the second meeting in January to exchange 

ideas about goals and budget priorities for the upcoming year. This has been adjusted to the 

first meeting in February due to the appointment of a new council member.  

Financial Implications:  

None. 

Attachments: 

None.  

9B



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: City Council  

From: Fire Chief Mark Jordan  

Subject: Purchase of Wildland Protective Clothing  

Meeting Date: January 27th, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the purchase of eleven (11) sets of Wildland Protective Clothing from Axes and Iron 

as part of the VFC (Volunteer Fire Capacity) grant from DNR at the cost of $10,670.73.  

Background Information:  

In December 2024, the fire department was awarded the Volunteer Fire Capacity Grant (VFC) from the 

Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR). This grant will reimburse the city 50% or up to 

$5,000 of the amount spent to purchase wildland protective clothing. As per the contract with DNR, we 

are required to obtain 3 quotes, which must be presented to the DNR at time of payment. We received 

3 quotes, Allied Fire Sales $10,776, MES fire sales $11,653 and Axes and Irons $10,670.73. We chose 

Axes and Iron due to the inclusion of particulate hoods and a shorter delivery time (quote attached). 

Financial Implications:  

The total cost of the project, $10,670.73 $5000 of which will be reimbursed by the grant leaving the 

reminder of $5,670.73 to be funded out of the fire department capital budget.  

Attachments: Quote 

 Quote and Contract

10B



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

. 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: YMCA Recreation Agreement 2025-2026 

Meeting Date: January 27, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the two-year City Recreation Agreement with YMCA for the total sum of 

$70,000.  

Background Information:  

The City contracts with the YMCA of Barry County to operate and manage recreation programs 

for the City. Included programs are listed on page 4 of the Agreement. This is the same 

agreement as has been used in the past.  

CEO/Executive Director Jon Sporer will be present at the meeting to answer any questions. 

Attachments: 

 City Recreation Agreement

10C



Page 1 of 4 

CITY RECREATION AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement entered into this __ day of _________ 2025, by and between the City of Hastings, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation (hereinafter referred to as "City"), of 201 East State Street, Hastings, Michigan, 49058, and 
the YMCA of Barry County, a Michigan Corporation (hereinafter referred to as "YMCA"), of 2055 Iroquois Trail, 
Hastings, Michigan, 49058. 
 
For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. Purpose: The City wishes to engage the YMCA in the provision of recreational opportunities for the residents of 
the City of Hastings and the YMCA wishes to provide such services according to the terms set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
2. Term: The term of this Agreement shall be 24 months commencing on January 1, 2025, and ending on 
December 31, 2026, unless otherwise terminated earlier as provided in Paragraph 10. 
 
3. Payment: Unless this Agreement is terminated as provided in Paragraph 10, the City shall pay to the YMCA the 
total sum of $70,000.00 for services provided under this Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, 
payments shall be made payable to the YMCA at 2055 Iroquois Trail, Hastings, Michigan, 49058, according to this 
schedule: 
 

$17,500.00 payable on 1/15/25 
$17,500.00 payable on 7/15/25 
$17,500.00 payable on 1/15/26 
$17,500.00 payable on 7/15/26 

 
4. Recreational Program: During the term of this Agreement, the YMCA agrees to regularly provide to the 
residents of the City activities for Youth, Teens, Families, and Adults as described in the program list that is 
attached to this Agreement and incorporated by reference ("Recreational Programs"). The YMCA agrees to hire all 
instructors, officials, and staff and provide adequate supervision to these individuals and shall maintain any and 
all necessary Worker's Compensation and Employees Liability Insurance with respect to each of its employees 
engaged in the Recreational Programs. 
 
5. Reports: The YMCA agrees to provide, at a minimum, a yearly report to the City Council on or before May 31, 
2025, and May 31, 2026. The yearly report shall include a detailed description of the Recreational Programs 
provided under this Agreement since the prior report, participation numbers, and any other information which the 
YMCA believes necessary or is reasonably requested by the City. 
 
6. Board Appointment: The YMCA agrees to reserve one seat on its Board of Directors for a resident or employee 
of the City recommended by the Mayor and approved by City Council. 
 
7. Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the YMCA shall, at its sole cost and expense, defend, 
hold harmless and indemnify the City and its elected officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated 
volunteers, successors, assigns and any City agents serving as independent contractors in the role of City officials 
(collectively "Indemnitees"), from and against any and all damages, costs, expenses, liabilities, claims, demands, 



Page 2 of 4 

causes of action, proceedings, expenses, judgments, penalties, liens, and losses of any nature whatsoever, 
including fees of accountants, attorneys, or other professionals and all costs associated therewith and the 
payment of all consequential damages (collectively "Liabilities"), at law or in equity, whether actual, alleged or 
threatened, which arise out of, are claimed to arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the acts or omissions of the 
YMCA, its officers, agents, servants, employees, sub-contractors, materialmen, consultants or their officers, 
agents, servants or employees (or any entity or individual that the YMCA shall bear the legal liability thereof) in 
the performance of this Agreement, including the Indemnitees' active or passive negligence, except for Liabilities 
arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnitees as determined by court decision or by 
the agreement of the Parties. The YMCA shall defend the Indemnitees in any action or actions filed in connection 
with any Liabilities with counsel of the Indemnitees' choice, and shall pay all costs and expenses, including all 
attorneys' fees and experts' costs actually incurred in connection with such defense. The YMCA shall reimburse 
the Indemnitees for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by Indemnitees in connection therewith. 
 
8. Non-assignability: Neither this Agreement, nor any part of it, shall be assigned by either party without the prior 
written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
9. Insurance; The YMCA shall obtain and continuously maintain in effect during the term of this Agreement a 
policy of general liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence with an insurance company 
licensed to do business in the State of Michigan. The City shall be named an additional insured on the policy and 
the policy shall provide a waiver of subrogation and at least 30 days written notice to the City of any cancellation, 
termination or material modification of the policy. The YMCA shall provide the City a current copy of the policy or 
certificate of insurance evidencing such coverage. 
 
10. Termination: This Agreement shall terminate on the happening of any of the following events: 

a. Mutual agreement of the parties; 
b. Either party gives written notice of termination to the other party and, in such case, the City shall be 
entitled to a pro-rata refund of its current payment; 
c. If either party dissolves, becomes insolvent or a voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy is begun by or 
against a party; or 
d. The stated expiration date of December 31, 2026, is achieved. 
 

11. Continuation: The parties agree to review and discuss their respective intentions to enter into a subsequent 
agreement for similar services on or about November 1, 2026. 
 
12. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Michigan. 
 
13. Venue: The parties agree that there shall be exclusive venue in Barry County, Michigan for any action brought 
to enforce the terms of this Agreement. 
 
14. Entire Agreement: Amendments: This Agreement contains the entire Agreement, represents the complete 
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter contained in this Agreement, and all prior 
agreements or understandings of the parties are revoked. There are no agreements, restrictions, promises, 
warranties, covenants, or other undertakings other than those expressly set forth in this Agreement. 
 



Page 3 of 4 

15. Modification: This Agreement may be amended or terminated only by a written instrument executed by both 
parties. 
 
16. Notices: All notices and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be deemed given when delivered personally or by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested), 
addressed as follows (or any other address that is specified in writing by either party): 
City of Hastings:    Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

c/o City of Hastings 
201 E. State Street 
Hastings, MI 49058 

YMCA: 
Jon Sporer, CEO/Executive Director 
c/o YMCA of Barry County 
PO Box 252 
2055 Iroquois Trail 
Hastings, MI 49058 
 

17. Authority of Signers: The individuals executing this Agreement below personally warrant to the other party 
hereto that such individual in executing this Agreement is acting with full authority to bind the party on behalf of 
which it has signed to the terms of this Agreement and that evidence of such authority shall be submitted upon 
request. 
 
18. Duplicate Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Date first above 
written. 
CITY OF HASTINGS:     YMCA OF BARRY COUNTY, INC: 
 
________________________________   _________________________________ 
By: David Tossava       By: Jon Sporer 
Its: Mayor       Its: CEO/Executive Director 
 
________________________________ 
By: Linda Perin 
Its: City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director  
YMCA of Barry County Services and Programs that are funded in part through the Hastings/YMCA 
City Recreation Agreement 

• The YMCA has discretion of services based on needs, facility availability, and enrollment to run programs due to 
programs varying year to year and season to season. 

• We currently give all families who live in the City of Hastings a $10 discount for all programs. 

• Aquatics 

• A Free Safety Around Water course for all residents of the City of Hastings 



Page 4 of 4 

• A swim program from ages 3 and older to learn how to swim and to develop stronger swimming skills 

• Youth Activities @ Fish Hatchery, Tyden and schools 

• Outdoor soccer during spring and fall (tots-6th grade) 

• Competitive Basketball w/ instructional clinics (K-6th Grade) 

• Flag Football (K-6th Grade) 

• T-ball, Coach pitch Baseball and Softball (K-6th grade) 

• Summer Golf, Tennis, Volleyball 

• Adult Activities 

• Co-ed Volleyball (Summer, Fall and Winter leagues) 

• Women's volleyball (Fall and Winter Leagues) 

• Men's Basketball (A and B Winter Leagues) 

• Co-Ed Church Softball (Summer) 

• Adult Fitness Classes (Seniors at the COA, adults at the Y) 

• Family Programs 

• Turkey Trot 

• YMCA Open House during the Spring 

• Summer Playground 

• Free 6-week summer "drop-in" playground program for K-6th grade, to be held at Fish Hatchery Park. 
Program times are from 9 am-12:30 pm – with lunch provided through the YMCA. 

• Subsidized budgets approved annually by the YMCA Board of Directors 

 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: City Council  

From: Travis J. Tate, P.E., Director of Public Services 

Subject: Resolution 2025-01 E. State Street Improvements 

Meeting Date: January 27, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve Resolution 2025-01 to enter agreement with MDOT for Surface 

Transportation Improvements on East State Street.  

Background Information:  

The East State Street improvement project (25A0151) is a Small Urban grant project through 

the State of Michigan. The Small Urban Program provides federal Surface Transportation 

Program (STP) funding to areas with a population of 5,000 to 49,999. Road and transit capital 

projects are eligible for Small Urban funds. All road projects must be located on the federal-aid 

highway system and within the federal urban area boundary. Projects must be consistent with 

regional land use and development plans.  

The contracted agreement estimated cost is $499,050.  Federal Funds will cover $385,000 of 

this total, leaving $114,050 for the city to obligate. This project Bid Letting is scheduled for 

February 07, 2025, and construction to begin in April.  However, the resolution needs to be 

approved by the council and sent to MDOT for this project to continue. 

Financial Implications:  

There is $680,000 in the budget for Land Improvement - Depreciable, of this $225,000 was the 

City’s portion in the Capital Improvement Plan for this project. 

Attachments: 

 Resolution 2025-01

 MDOT Agreement, Contract No. 24-5543

10D



Resolution 2025-01 Page 1 of 1 January 27, 2025 

City Of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

Resolution 2025-01 

Resolution to Enter Agreement with MDOT for Surface Transportation 
Improvements on East State Street. 

WHEREAS, the City of Hastings will be doing road improvements at East State Street, and 

WHEREAS, a contract with MDOT must be entered in order to establish the rights and 
obligations of the parties in agreeing to the improvements. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that CONTRACT NO. 24-5543, by and between the Michigan 
Department of Transportation and the City of Hastings is hereby accepted and that Linda Perin, 
Clerk/Treasurer, is authorized to sign the said contract.  

A motion to adopt the foregoing resolution being offered by Member _____________, with support by 
Member _______________: 

YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

MOTION DECLARED ______________. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted at a duly held and attended regular meeting 
the 27th day of January 2025 by the City Council of the City of Hastings, by a vote of ____ member(s) 
voting in favor thereof and _____ member(s) voting against, and ____ member(s) absent. 

_______________________  
Linda Perin, City Clerk 



 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/27/24 

 
1 

STP        DA 
      Control Section STUL 08000  
      Job Number  214515CON  
      Project   25A0151  
      CFDA No.  20.205 (Highway Research 
         Planning & Construction) 
      Contract No.  24-5543  
 
 
 PART I 
 
 
 THIS CONTRACT, consisting of PART I and PART II (Standard Agreement Provisions), 
is made by and between the MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter 
referred to as the "DEPARTMENT"; and the CITY OF HASTINGS, a Michigan municipal 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "REQUESTING PARTY"; for the purpose of fixing the 
rights and obligations of the parties in agreeing to the following improvements, in Hastings, 
Michigan, hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT" and estimated in detail on EXHIBIT "I", dated 
December 27, 2024, attached hereto and made a part hereof: 
 

Hot mix asphalt pavement removal, grading and paving along East State Street from Grand 
Street to Clinton Street; including aggregate base, concrete curb and gutter, curb ramps, 
sidewalk, permanent signing and pavement markings; and all together with necessary 
related work. 

 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Federal law, monies have been provided for the performance of 
certain improvements on public roads; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the reference "FHWA" in PART I and PART II refers to the United States 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the PROJECT, or portions of the PROJECT, at the request of the 
REQUESTING PARTY, are being programmed with the FHWA, for implementation with the use 
of Federal Funds under the following Federal program(s) or funding: 
 
 SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties hereto have reached an understanding with each other regarding 
the performance of the PROJECT work and desire to set forth this understanding in the form of a 
written contract.  
 



 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/27/24 

 
2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual undertakings of 
the parties and in conformity with applicable law, it is agreed: 
 
 1. The parties hereto shall undertake and complete the PROJECT in accordance with 
the terms of this contract. 
 
 2. The term "PROJECT COST", as herein used, is hereby defined as the cost of the 
physical construction necessary for the completion of the PROJECT, including any other costs 
incurred by the DEPARTMENT as a result of this contract, except construction engineering and 
inspection. 
 
 No charges will be made by the DEPARTMENT to the PROJECT for any inspection work 
or construction engineering. 
 
 The costs incurred by the REQUESTING PARTY for preliminary engineering, 
construction engineering, construction materials testing, inspection, and right-of-way are excluded 
from the PROJECT COST as defined by this contract.   
 
 The Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy has informed the 
DEPARTMENT that it adopted new administrative rules (R 325.10101, et. seq.) which prohibit 
any governmental agency from connecting and/or reconnecting lead and/or galvanized service 
lines to existing and/or new water main.  Questions regarding these administrative rules should be 
directed to Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy.  The cost associated 
with replacement of any lead and/or galvanized service lines, including but not limited to 
contractor claims, will be the sole responsibility of the REQUESTING PARTY.  
  
 3. The DEPARTMENT is authorized by the REQUESTING PARTY to administer on 
behalf of the REQUESTING PARTY all phases of the PROJECT, including advertising and 
awarding the construction contract for the PROJECT or portions of the PROJECT.  Such 
administration shall be in accordance with PART II, Section II of this contract. 
 
 Any items of the PROJECT COST incurred by the DEPARTMENT may be charged to the 
PROJECT. 
  
 4. The REQUESTING PARTY, at no cost to the PROJECT or to the DEPARTMENT, 
shall:  
 

A. Design or cause to be designed the plans for the PROJECT. 
 

B. Appoint a project engineer who shall be in responsible charge of the 
PROJECT and ensure that the plans and specifications are followed. 

 
C. Perform or cause to be performed the construction engineering, construction 

materials testing, and inspection services necessary for the completion of 
the PROJECT. 



 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/27/24 

 
3 

 
 The REQUESTING PARTY will furnish the DEPARTMENT proposed timing sequences 
for trunkline signals that, if any, are being made part of the improvement.  No timing adjustments 
shall be made by the REQUESTING PARTY at any trunkline intersection, without prior issuances 
by the DEPARTMENT of Standard Traffic Signal Timing Permits. 
  
 5.  The PROJECT COST shall be met in part by contributions by the Federal 
Government.  Federal Surface Transportation Funds shall be applied to the eligible items of the 
PROJECT COST up to the lesser of: (1) $385,000 or (2) an amount such that 81.85 percent, the 
normal Federal participation ratio for such funds, is not exceeded at the time of the award of the 
construction contract.  The balance of the PROJECT COST, after deduction of Federal Funds, 
shall be charged to and paid by the REQUESTING PARTY in the manner and at the times 
hereinafter set forth. 
 
 Any items of PROJECT COST not reimbursed by Federal Funds shall be the sole 
responsibility of the REQUESTING PARTY. 
  
 6. No working capital deposit will be required for this PROJECT. 
 
 In order to fulfill the obligations assumed by the REQUESTING PARTY under the 
provisions of this contract, the REQUESTING PARTY shall make prompt payments of its share 
of the PROJECT COST upon receipt of progress billings from the DEPARTMENT as herein 
provided.  All payments will be made within 30 days of receipt of billings from the 
DEPARTMENT.  Billings to the REQUESTING PARTY will be based upon the REQUESTING 
PARTY'S share of the actual costs incurred less Federal Funds earned as the PROJECT progresses. 
 
 7. Upon completion of construction of the PROJECT, the REQUESTING PARTY 
will promptly cause to be enacted and enforced such ordinances or regulations as may be necessary 
to prohibit parking in the roadway right-of-way throughout the limits of the PROJECT. 
  
 8. The performance of the entire PROJECT under this contract, whether Federally 
funded or not, will be subject to the provisions and requirements of PART II that are applicable to 
a Federally funded project. 
 
 In the event of any discrepancies between PART I and PART II of this contract, the 
provisions of PART I shall prevail.   
 
 Buy America Requirements (23 CFR 635.410) shall apply to the PROJECT and will be 
adhered to, as applicable, by the parties hereto. 
 

9. The REQUESTING PARTY certifies that it is not aware if and has no reason to 
believe that the property on which the work is to be performed under this agreement is a facility, 
as defined by the Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act [(NREPA), PA 
451, 1994, as amended 2012];  MCL 324.20101(1)(s).  The REQUESTING PARTY also certifies 



 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/27/24 

 
4 

that it is not a liable party pursuant to either Part 201 or Part 213 of NREPA, MCL 324.20126 et 
seq. and MCL 324.21323a et seq.  The REQUESTING PARTY is a local unit of government that 
has acquired or will acquire property for the use of either a transportation corridor or public right-
of-way and was not responsible for any activities causing a release or threat of release of any 
hazardous materials at or on the property.  The REQUESTING PARTY is not a person who is 
liable for response activity costs, pursuant to MCL 324.20101 (vv) and (ww).  
 
 10. If, subsequent to execution of this contract, previously unknown hazardous 
substances are discovered within the PROJECT limits, which require environmental remediation 
pursuant to either state or federal law, the REQUESTING PARTY, in addition to reporting that 
fact to the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy, shall immediately 
notify the DEPARTMENT, both orally and in writing of such discovery.  The DEPARTMENT 
shall consult with the REQUESTING PARTY to determine if it is willing to pay for the cost of 
remediation and, with the FHWA, to determine the eligibility, for reimbursement, of the 
remediation costs.  The REQUESTING PARTY shall be charged for and shall pay all costs 
associated with such remediation, including all delay costs of the contractor for the PROJECT, in 
the event that remediation and delay costs are not deemed eligible by the FHWA.  If the 
REQUESTING PARTY refuses to participate in the cost of remediation, the DEPARTMENT shall 
terminate the PROJECT.  The parties agree that any costs or damages that the DEPARTMENT 
incurs as a result of such termination shall be considered a PROJECT COST. 
 
 11. If federal and/or state funds administered by the DEPARTMENT are used to pay 
the cost of remediating any hazardous substances discovered after the execution of this contract 
and if there is a reasonable likelihood of recovery, the REQUESTING PARTY, in cooperation 
with the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy and the DEPARTMENT, 
shall make a diligent effort to recover such costs from all other possible entities.  If recovery is 
made, the DEPARTMENT shall be reimbursed from such recovery for the proportionate share of 
the amount paid by the FHWA and/or the DEPARTMENT and the DEPARTMENT shall credit 
such sums to the appropriate funding source. 
 
 12. The DEPARTMENT'S sole reason for entering into this contract is to enable the 
REQUESTING PARTY to obtain and use funds provided by the Federal Highway Administration 
pursuant to Title 23 of the United States Code. 
 
 Any and all approvals of, reviews of, and recommendations regarding contracts, 
agreements, permits, plans, specifications, or documents, of any nature, or any inspections of work 
by the DEPARTMENT or its agents pursuant to the terms of this contract are done to assist the 
REQUESTING PARTY in meeting program guidelines in order to qualify for available funds.  
Such approvals, reviews, inspections and recommendations by the DEPARTMENT or its agents 
shall not relieve the REQUESTING PARTY and the local agencies, as applicable, of their ultimate 
control and shall not be construed as a warranty of their propriety or that the DEPARTMENT or 
its agents is assuming any liability, control or jurisdiction. 
 



 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/27/24 

 
5 

 The providing of recommendations or advice by the DEPARTMENT or its agents does not 
relieve the REQUESTING PARTY and the local agencies, as applicable of their exclusive 
jurisdiction of the highway and responsibility under MCL 691.1402 et seq., as amended. 
 
 When providing approvals, reviews and recommendations under this contract, the 
DEPARTMENT or its agents is performing a governmental function, as that term is defined in 
MCL 691.1401 et seq., as amended, which is incidental to the completion of the PROJECT. 
 

Upon completion of the PROJECT, the REQUESTING PARTY shall accept the facilities 
constructed as built to specifications within the contract documents. It is understood that the 
REQUESTING PARTY shall own the facilities and shall operate and maintain the facilities in 
accordance with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including, but not limited 
to, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 USC 12131 et seq., and its associated 
regulations and standards, and DEPARTMENT Road and Bridge Standard Plans and the Standard 
Specifications for Construction. 

 
 13. The DEPARTMENT, by executing this contract, and rendering services pursuant 
to this contract, has not and does not assume jurisdiction of the highway, described as the 
PROJECT for purposes of MCL 691.1402 et seq., as amended.  Exclusive jurisdiction of such 
highway for the purposes of MCL 691.1402 et seq., as amended, rests with the REQUESTING 
PARTY and other local agencies having respective jurisdiction. 
 
 14. The REQUESTING PARTY shall approve all of the plans and specifications to be 
used on the PROJECT and shall be deemed to have approved all changes to the plans and 
specifications when put into effect.  It is agreed that ultimate responsibility and control over the 
PROJECT rests with the REQUESTING PARTY and local agencies, as applicable. 
 
 15. The REQUESTING PARTY agrees that the costs reported to the DEPARTMENT 
for this contract will represent only those items that are properly chargeable in accordance with 
this contract.  The REQUESTING PARTY also certifies that it has read the contract terms and has 
made itself aware of the applicable laws, regulations, and terms of this contract that apply to the 
reporting of costs incurred under the terms of this contract. 
 

16. Each party to this contract will remain responsible for any and all claims arising 
out of its own acts and/or omissions during the performance of the contract, as provided by this 
contract or by law.  In addition, this is not intended to increase or decrease either party’s liability 
for or immunity from tort claims.  This contract is also not intended to nor will it be interpreted as 
giving either party a right of indemnification, either by contract or by law, for claims arising out 
of the performance of this contract. 
 

 17. The parties shall promptly provide comprehensive assistance and cooperation in 
defending and resolving any claims brought against the DEPARTMENT by the contractor, 
vendors or suppliers as a result of the DEPARTMENT'S award of the construction contract for the 
PROJECT.  Costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT in defending or resolving such claims shall be 
considered PROJECT COSTS. 



 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/27/24 

 
6 

 
 18. The DEPARTMENT shall require the contractor who is awarded the contract for 
the construction of the PROJECT to provide insurance in the amounts specified and in accordance 
with the DEPARTMENT'S current Standard Specifications for Construction and to:  
 

A. Maintain bodily injury and property damage insurance for the duration of 
the PROJECT. 

 
B. Provide owner's protective liability insurance naming as insureds the State 

of Michigan, the Michigan State Transportation Commission, the 
DEPARTMENT and its officials, agents and employees, the 
REQUESTING PARTY and any other county, county road commission, or 
municipality in whose jurisdiction the PROJECT is located, and their 
employees, for the duration of the PROJECT and to provide, upon request, 
copies of certificates of insurance to the insureds.  It is understood that the 
DEPARTMENT does not assume jurisdiction of the highway described as 
the PROJECT as a result of being named as an insured on the owner’s 
protective liability insurance policy. 

 
C. Comply with the requirements of notice of cancellation and reduction of 

insurance set forth in the current standard specifications for construction 
and to provide, upon request, copies of notices and reports prepared to those 
insured. 



 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/27/24 

 
7 

 19.         This contract shall become binding on the parties hereto and of full force and 
effect upon the signing thereof by the duly authorized officials for the parties hereto and upon the 
adoption of the necessary resolutions approving said contract and authorizing the signatures 
thereto of the respective officials of the REQUESTING PARTY, a certified copy of which 
resolution shall be attached to this contract. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed as 
written below. 
 
CITY OF HASTINGS    MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT 
         OF TRANSPORTATION 
  
 
 
By___________________________        By___________________________ 
  Title:              for Department Director  MDOT 
                                           
 
By___________________________ 
  Title: 
 
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
  
  

DoyleL
Reviewed



 

09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/27/24 

 
8 

 December 27, 2024 
 
 
 EXHIBIT I 
 
    CONTROL SECTION STUL 08000 
    JOB NUMBER   214515CON 
    PROJECT   25A0151 
 
 
 ESTIMATED COST 
 
CONTRACTED WORK 
Estimated Cost        $499,050 
 
 
 
 
 COST PARTICIPATION 
 
GRAND TOTAL ESTIMATED COST   $499,050  
Less Federal Funds*  $385,000 
BALANCE (REQUESTING PARTY'S SHARE)    $114,050 
 
 
*Federal Funds for the PROJECT are limited to an amount as described in Section 5. 
 
NO DEPOSIT  











































Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Purchase Ordinance Amendment Consideration 

Meeting Date: January 27, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

No official action at this time; please review and provide comments.  

Background Information:  

The City’s purchasing ordinance has not been amended in 30 years. As we will be implementing 

new software and incorporating a new purchasing process, I felt it would be a good time to 

review the ordinance as well.  

The primary issue with the ordinance that I wanted to revise was that department head 

purchases over $300 have to be approved by the City Manager. I want to increase that to at 

least $1,000.  

I also want to change the threshold for sealed bids being required which is currently $5,000. As 

you will see in the enclosed table, that is significantly lower than in many other communities. 

The sealed bidding process is more complex than what contractors want to involve themselves 

in for projects/equipment of that small size, leading to reduced participation. I recommend the 

council consider $15,000 - $20,000.  

You may want to consider if you still want purchases over $5,000 to be approved by the council 

or if another value makes more sense today ($5,000 in 1994 is about $10,650 today).  

Another consideration is specifying a preference for locally sourced items, see the final clause 

of the draft text.  

I have enclosed a draft purchasing ordinance for discussion purposes.  

11A



 
 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

Financial Implications:  

None.  

 

Attachments: 

 Sealed bid comparison by community 

 Draft text 

 



Spending limit before sealed bids are required, by community. 

 

 Grand Haven Twp $50,000 
Port Huron $25,000 
Muskegon $25,000 
Coldwater $25,000 
Petoskey $25,000 
Fremont $25,000 
Ypsilanti $25,000 
Grand Traverse County $25,000 
North Muskegon $20,000 
Allegan $20,000 
Chelsea $15,000 
Middleville $15,000 
Rockford $15,000 
Crystal Falls $15,000 
Caro $10,000 
Owosso $10,000 
Ionia  $10,000 
Grand Blanc Charter Twp $10,000 
Jonesville $10,000 
Branch County $10,000 
Saugatuck $10,000 
Fraser $7,500  
Dexter $5,000 
Hastings $5,000 



DIVISION 2-V-2 PURCHASING AND CONTRACTING PROCEDURES 

Sec 2-211 Definitions 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning:  

Purchase or Purchases shall mean an exchange or transfer of goods and/or services.  

Purchasing agent means the city manager or any officer or employee designated by the 
city manager to act as purchasing agent.  

Sec 2-212 Generally 

The general authority of the purchasing agent shall be pursuant to chapter VIII of the 
Charter and to this division.  

Sec 2-213 Purchases Under $1,000 

Purchases involving expenditures of $1,000 or less may be made with the approval of the 
applicable department head.  

Sec 2-214 Purchases Equal to or Greater Than $1,000 and Under $5,000 

1. Purchases equal to or greater than $1,000 and less than $5,000 may be made in 
the open market by the purchasing agent, but such purchase shall be based on 
competitive prices and shall be awarded to the lowest competent vendor, except 
as otherwise provided in this division.  

2. The purchasing agent may solicit prices verbally, by telephone or by written 
communication. If bids are solicited via written communication, a copy of such 
request for bids shall be posted in the city hall.  

3. In determining the competency of a bidder, the purchasing agent shall be guided 
by his/her judgment of the ability of the bidder to provide the required material or 
services in compliance with the specifications set forth in the request for bids. If 
the purchase is not made with the lowest bidder, a statement of the reasons for 
placing the order with a higher bidder shall be prepared by the purchasing agent 
and filed with the purchase order or contract.  

Sec 2-215 Purchases Equal to or Greater Than $5,000.00 

1. Any purchase involving an expenditure of equal to or greater than $5,000.00 must 
be approved by the council.  



2. Sealed bids shall be requested by the purchasing agent by mailing a copy of the 
specifications or requirements to such qualified vendors as may be known to 
him/her at such time and by posting a copy of the request in the city hall.  

3. Formal sealed bids shall be obtained in all transactions involving the expenditure 
of $5,000.00 or more.  

4. If the lowest competent bids are for the same amount, the purchasing agent shall 
negotiate with the low bidders for a reduced bid and shall make or recommend 
purchase that shall appear to be in the best interests of the city.  

5. Competitive bidding will not be required in the following cases:  

1. In the employment of professional services, including medical, accounting, 
auditing, data processing, legal, planning, engineering, and architectural.  

2. All services performed by the city, its departments, or its employees. 

3. In purchasing any type of insurance coverage.  

4. Uniforms and protective clothing.  

5. Non-contractible services, where the scope of the work is not definitive or 
the cost of preparing contract documents exceeds the cost of the service.  

6. Specialty services.  

7. Where the purchase involves the use of State of Michigan or federal funds 
and State or federal rules, regulations and procedures with respect to 
purchases apply. 

8. Other purchases that the city council determines, by resolution, that the 
public interest will be best served without obtaining competitive bids; 
provided that a copy of such resolution is retained along with the contract 
or purchase order. 

6. Unless fixed by the city council, the purchasing agent shall prescribe the amount 
of any security to be deposited with any bid, if applicable, and, in the case of 
service contracts, the amount of labor and material or performance bonds to be 
required of the successful bidder. Such security shall be in the form of certified or 
cashier’s check or bond written by a surety company authorized to do business in 
the State of Michigan.  

7. Bids shall be opened in public at the time and place designated in the request for 
bids. Bids shall be opened in the presence of the purchasing agent and at least 



one other city employee, preferably the department head requesting the purchase. 
Immediately following the opening, the bids shall be examined, tabulated and 
made publically available for inspection.  

8. After the opening of the submitted bids, such bids may not be withdrawn without 
forfeiture of the bid deposit. Deposits of security accompanying the three (3) low 
bids shall be retained until the contract is awarded and signed; other deposits shall 
be returned to the unsuccessful bidders immediately after the bids have been 
tabulated. If any successful bidder fails or refuses to enter into the contract 
awarded to him within ten (10) days after being notified of such an award or file 
any bond required within the same time, the deposit accompanying his bid shall 
be forfeited to the city; and the city council may, in its sole discretion, award the 
contract to the next lowest bidder or re-advertise the request for bids.  

9. The full tabulation of all bids shall be submitted to the city council at the next 
regular meeting following the opening of bids, together with the recommendation 
of the purchasing agent or department head. The city council, in its sole discretion, 
may accept the low bid, reject all bids, or determine the low bid to be 
unsatisfactory and make the award to the lowest competent bidder.  

10. At the time a service contract executed by the awarded bidder, they shall file a 
bond executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the State of 
Michigan, assuring payment of all just debts incurred in the performance of the 
contract, including wages and material bills, and shall file a performance bond, if 
required in the bid specification. The awarded bidder shall also file evidence of 
public liability insurance and workers’ compensation insurance in an amount 
satisfactory to the city Manager and shall also protect the city from loss or damage 
caused to any person or property by reason of negligence of the awarded bidder 
and its employees, agents, and sub-contractors. 

11. The city council shall reserve the right to accept or reject any or all bids as 
submitted if in the city council’s discretion such action would be in the best 
interests of the city.  

Sec 2-216 Purchases Through Other Governmental Units 

Where another governmental entity uses a bid process similar to the process specified by 
this division to obtain services, materials, supplies and/or equipment, the purchasing 
agent may purchase these items under the auspices of the other governmental unit.  

Sec 2-217 Prohibitions 



(a) No purchase shall be subdivided to avoid the requirements of this division.  

(b) The purchasing agent, and every officer and employee of the city, is expressly 
prohibited from accepting, directly or indirectly, from any person doing business 
or contemplating doing business with the city, any rebate, gift, money or anything 
of value. Further, purchasing agent, and every officer and employee of the city, 
shall comply with the Division 2-VI-2, “Standards of Conduct.” 

Sec 2-218 Emergency Purchases 

In an emergency or a reasonably apparent emergency endangering the public peace, 
health and safety of the city which requires the immediate purchase of supplies, materials, 
equipment or services, the purchasing agent may purchase any supplies, materials, 
equipment or services which he/she deems reasonable and immediately necessary. In 
the case of emergency purchases, a full report of the circumstances of the emergency 
purchase shall be filed and presented to the city council at the next regular meeting.   

Sec 2-219 Inspection Of Materials 

The responsibility for the inspection and acceptance of all materials, supplies and 
equipment purchased under this division shall rest with the department head.  

Sec 2-220 Local Preference 

Vendors located within fifteen (15) miles of the city may be awarded purchases or 
contracts when the lowest qualified local bid/price is within two percent (2%) or less of 
the lowest qualified non-local bid. 

 



Dale Boulter     Julissa Kelly      
Chief of Police       Deputy Chief 

Hastings Police Department Council report for the month of December 2024 

STAFFING 

Staffing has remained unchanged since last report with one on light duty. Devon Chojnacki has started 

the police academy and will be attached to them for the next sixteen weeks.  

STATS  

The past month officers responded to 378 calls for service, with a total of 15 arrests, 19 traffic accidents 

4 non-traffic accidents. Officers issued a total of 32 citations, 23 being moving violations, 9 being Non-

moving violations. Officers conducted a total of 116 traffic contacts for the month of February.  

RESERVE OFFICERS 

The Reserve Department contributed 63.5 hours for the month of February.  

2:00 AM – 6:00 AM WINTER PARKING ON STREETS 

The 2-6 AM No parking enforcement continues. Please find other means of off-street parking during the 

winter months to avoid enforcement. 

EVENTS: 

Turkeys and gift cards were delivered to 20 families prior to Christmas. The Turkeys were supplied by an 

anonymous giver and the cost of the git cards was covered by another anonymous donation to the 

police department.  

Officers participated in the Shop with a Cop Event where children were selected to shop with a Cop for 

the evening. The children were given gift cards and allowed to shop at Walmart. Food and drink were 

provided along with a ride from Holley Trolly. Several members of our department, including Reserve 

Officers, enjoyed the night. 

The Christmas Parade required every person from the HPD team to be on duty. Our team along with DPs 

and Hastings Fire joined together to make this a safe event for our city. 

Hastings City Police 
201 E. State St.  

Hastings, MI 49058 
(269) 948-4800 Dispatch

(269) 945-5744 Office
(269) 945-4358 Fax

12A



 

New Year Eve Ball Drop was another big hit for our city. Officers attended the event to help close out the 

old and bring in the new year.  

Code Compliance report 

Code enforcement took a total of 53 new complaints for the month of December. 

Report attached  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dale Boulter 

Chief of Police 

 



Total Comp_laints: 378 

Total Arrests: 15 

HASTINGS CITY COUNCIL 

MONTHL V REPORT 

MONTH OF December 2024 
From Hastings Police Department 

Chief Dale Boulter 

Adults: 8 Theft from MV-1, Uttering and publishing-!, A&B-3, OWl-2, No insurance-1. 

Juveniles: 0 

Arrests Warrants for other Departments: 7 Obstructing justice-7. 

Traffic Summary_: 

Traffic Accidents: 19 

Property Damage: 18 Injuries: 1 Fatal: 0 Non-Traffic: 4

Tickets Issued: 32 

Moving Violations Issued: 23 

Non-Moving Violations: 9 







City of Hastings 
Code Compliance Officer 
December 2024 Activity 

Report 

 
 

  

QUANTITY COMPLAINT   

2 Animal related (90-835)   

0 Grass and weeds more than 8” tall (38-105)   

0 
Compostable yard debris and refuse in right-of-way, snow 
piles (74-39, 74-71, 74-72) 

  

6 Garbage Code Violations (66-88/89/90/93/94)   

2 Vehicles parked on unapproved surfaces – residential zones (90-929)   

8 Unlicensed/Inoperable vehicles, parts, or tire storage (38-76, 77 ,78)   

10 Refuse and debris in unscreened area of yard (90-881, 90-882)   

4 Rental Unit complaints   

9 Signage issues/ Signs in Right-Of-Way   

0 Sign Permits Issued   

0 Fencing Issues   

1 Fence Permits Issued   

2 Structure & Building Maintenance Issues   

0 Recreational Vehicle Issues   

1 Abandoned refrigerator w/door attached (54-61)   

4 Sidewalk parking/right-of-way obstructions (74-71)   

4 Miscellaneous Issues & Complaints	   

53	 Total	Violations/Complaints	Handled	   

14 Letters sent   

0 Citations issued   

102 Follow Ups   

NOTES:	 Miscellaneous	Issues/	Complaints	details	   



Page 2 

QUANTITY COMPLAINT   

  

Conducted an Electronic Messages Boards zoning 
regulations compliance check. There are currently 13 
such signs in the city owned by institutions or 
businesses. A few noncompliance’s were discovered and 
after speaking with the signs owners promptly 
corrected. 

  

    

    

    

    

    

 	   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 BY: Frank Jesensek  DATE:  

 















































12B





















1 

Hastings City Council 
Memorandum 

Date:     January 27, 2025 
To:    Honorable Mayor Tossava & Members of the Hastings City Council 
From:    Dan King, Community Development Director 
Subject:       January Community Development Department Report 

A summary of the current activities in the Community Development Department includes:             

New Year’s Eve Celebration 

With temperatures in the mid-30s, no rain or snow, and light and variable winds, the evening 
was ideal for the celebration and ball drop. The entertainment and fireworks show were 
enjoyed by all.          

Neighborhood Enhancement Grant Round 9 

The NEP grant provided seven homeowners totaling $55,000 in exterior home improvement 
activities. Projects ranged from new windows, new driveways, new doors, and new gutters and 
downspouts. Staff is in the process of reviewing requirements for the MSHDA program that is 
replacing the now eliminated NEP program. 

Bachman Fields Project 

The Planning Commission conducted a preliminary site condominium project review at their 
January 6, 2025, meeting. The preliminary plan includes over 120 single family site 
condominiums. The proposed project is located on a 40-acre parcel in the northeast quadrant 
of the city. There is still much work to be done on the project plan before it can become a 
reality. 

12C



2 

 
 
 
Planning Commission 
 
The Planning Commission continues to work on housing related amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance. The Housing Committee will soon be presenting a draft of a 3-4 Family Overlay 
District to the full Commission. The district is intended to recognize the usefulness of gentle 
density housing near employment areas while also encouraging single-family homes near the 
center of the city. The overlay district would also recognize that there are older, large homes 
near the downtown that have already been divided into two or more dwelling units and will 
require careful review of further divisions to ensure the character of the area is maintained. 
More to come! 
 
Former Kentucky Fried Chicken Building 
 
Staff has been in contact with the broker that has the property for sale or lease. Staff 
communicated with the broker that there were no signs on the property signaling the 
availability of the building. Staff also communicated data regarding the pending housing 
projects to aid prospective tenants or purchasers of the likelihood of increased population 
growth in the city. 

 
 
Upcoming Events 
 
St. Patrick’s Day Parade TBD 
 
 
If you have any questions, concerns, or ideas please feel free to contact Sandy, Steve, or me 
at sponsetto@hastingsmi.gov shoke@hastingsmi.gov  dking@hastingsmi.gov  
 

 

                                  



1 

 

 
 
 
 

Hastings City Council 
Memorandum 

 
Date:   January 27, 2025 
To:     Honorable Mayor Tossava & Members of the Hastings City Council 
From:    Dan King, Community Development Director 
Subject:   2024 Community Development Department Annual Report 
 
A summary of the 2024 Community Development Highlights includes:  
 
Tyden Lofts 
 
The 60-unit affordable housing development was completed in the summer of 2024 with all  
units quickly leased. 
 
 

 
 



2 

 
 
 
 
 

Streetscape 
 
The downtown streetscape project was completed during the summer of 2024. This multi- 
million-dollar project funded primarily by the Downtown Development Authority added new  
amenities such as new irrigated streetlights, mid-block crosswalks, all new sidewalks,  
fireplace, hanging baskets, gateway features, and additional landscaping enhanced the core  
downtown creating a sense of place for residents and visitors alike. 
 

 

 
 

Pictures courtesy of MCSA Group 
 



3 

 
 
MSHDA Neighborhood Enhancement Program (NEP) Grant Round 9 
 
The Community Development Department administered 7 NEP grants totaling $55,000.00 
for exterior home improvements. The scope of work covered this year included replacement  
windows, deck improvements, gutters and downspouts, driveway and walk reconstruction, and  
doors. 
 

   
 

 
               
DDA Façade Grants 
 
The DDA disbursed approximately $38,000 in façade grants in calendar year 2024. Currently  
an additional $36,000 in funding is pledge for projects in 2025. 

                 



4 

 
  
 
Midwest Sculpture Initiative 
 
Sculpture selection for 2024 was held via an interactive Facebook presentation  
and online survey.  

 
    

 
Planning Commission 
 
A few if the notable site plan approvals issued by the Planning Commission in 2024 include 
commercial project on Enterprise Drive, a change in use plan for 128 S. Jefferson, and PUD  
amendment and site plan approval for Woodlawn Meadows. 
 
Barry Roubaix 
 
5,173 riders were registered for the 2024 event, setting a new high for the event. High of 44° 
winds at 18 MPH and a little bit of cold couldn’t stop the crowd from enjoying a great day with   
a brand-new sponsor and setting some new records along the way! 
 

 



5 

 
Meadowstone Apartments 
 
Construction has commenced on the 92 one-bedroom apartment development that will consist  
five additional buildings. Foundations have been constructed for the first three buildings with  
vertical construction slated. The development will incorporate components that will create a  
sense of place for the residents of both the new and existing apartments. 
 
Hastings Live 
 
Hastings Live experienced another successful programming year. The following is a recap of 
the season as provided by Arts and Events Coordinator, Steve Hoke: 
 
The Wednesday Night Community Concert Series had 12 different concerts in 2024. The 
Hastings City Band performed the first 5 of those concerts as in the past.  The attendance for 
all 12 of these performances was 2,435. 
 
The Thursday Playing at The Plaza for Children Series had 9 different performances in 2024.  
The attendance for all 9 of these performances was 243 Adults and 450 children. 
 
The Friday at the Fountain Series had 11 different concerts in 2024.  The attendance for all 11 
of those concerts 452. 
 
The Friday Night Feature Series had 11 different concerts in 2024.  The attendance for all 11 
of those concerts 3,456 
 
For the SummerFest shows there were a total of 4 performances held at the Thornapple Plaza 
over two days.  The attendance for Friday night’s performance was 362 and for Saturday 
night’s performance 410. 
 
For the SummerFest shows there were a total of 6 performances held at the Spray Plaza over 
two days.  The attendance for all those performances combined was 223. 
Once again, the Expressions Dance Studio performed both Friday and Saturday evenings 
between groups.   
 
We did have one performance at the Thornapple Plaza that was a first for Hastings Live.  An 
amateur theatre group out of Grand Rapids performed A Midsummer Night’s Dream with an 
attendance, in the pouring down rain of 39. 
 
Totals for the 2024 Hastings Live Summer Concert Series: 
Performers - 55 different acts 
There were 8,069 audience members for the total summer series. 
 



City of Hastings 

Downtown Development Authority 

DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

January 16, 2025 

1. Meeting Call to Order and Roll Call—

The meeting was called to order at 8:01 a.m. by Woods 

Roll Call –  

Present: Baker, Button, Hatfield, Peterson, Tossava, Ulberg, Wiswell, Woods, Ava Paterson (Student Member) 
Absent: Albrecht 
City Staff and Appointees: Hoke, King, Ponsetto, Resseguie 
Others Present:  

2. Pledge to the Flag

3. Approval/Additions/Deletions to Agenda –

Woods added the following items to the agenda under New Business: 

C. Discussion of DDA publications

D. Reimbursement to City for Purchase of Rotary Broom for Clearing Snow from Sidewalks Downtown

E. Information and Discussion of Michigan Ave. Bridge Maintenance

Motion by Wiswell, second by Hatfield, to approve the agenda as amended. 

All ayes, motion carried 

4. Approval of Minutes of The Regular November 21, 2024, DDA Meeting–

Motion by Wiswell, second by Ulberg, to approve the minutes as presented. 

All ayes, motion carried. 

5. Financial Statements & Budget for Review –

King said the budget data have been updated through Dec. 31, 2024. 

13A



The board discussed line items for the upcoming 2025 – 2026 DDA budget. 

 

6. Façade and BEIG Update-  

 

King said the facade grant and BEIG spreadsheets have been updated through Dec. 31, 2024. 

 

7. Open Public Comment and Discussion –  

 

Woods read a letter to the DDA, from Charlotte and Michael Anton, praising the new downtown streetscape 

Christmas decorations. 

 

8. Old Business- 

    

A. Façade Grant Request from Nathan Winnick for 502 W. State St.- 

No action was taken because the request did not meet the criteria to qualify for a façade grant.  

  9.  New Business 

A. Review and Consider Expenditure for Holiday Decorations- 

Motion by Tossava, second by Hatfield, to approve the expenditure of $29,734.00 for the purchase of holiday 

decorations. 

Ayes: Baker, Button, Hatfield, Peterson, Tossava, Ulberg, Wiswell, Woods 
Nays: 
Absent: Albrecht 
 
All ayes, motion carried. 
  

B. Annual Election of Officers— 
 

Motion by Tossava, second by Peterson, to elect the following slate of officers for 2025: Patty Woods, chair; 
Deb Hatfield, vice-chair; Deb Button, secretary. 
 
All ayes, motion carried. 
 

C. Discussion of DDA sponsored brochures for Hastings Live, Events, and Downtown Shopping and 
Dining- 

 
Hoke introduced discussion about annual publications, and brochures. No action was taken. 
 

D. Consider Request for Reimbursement of Cost for Large Rotary Broom Replacement- 
 

Motion by Hatfield, second by Peterson, to approve reimbursing the city $5,500.00 for the purchase of the 
large rotary broom used for clearing sidewalks. 



Ayes: Baker, Button, Hatfield, Peterson, Tossava, Ulberg, Wiswell, Woods 
Nays: 
Absent: Albrecht 
 
All ayes, motion carried. 
 

E. Discussion of Michigan Ave. Bridge Maintenance— 
 

King said the city is having an engineering study done regarding the procedure and costs of removing the 
flaking paint from the Michigan Ave. bridge.  Discussion and information only, no action taken. 
 

9. DDA Member Comment –  

 

Woods asked about the date for the sculpture selection for the 2005- 2026 Downtown Sculpture Exhibit. 

 

Hatfield said she would like to see staff use part of the $4,000.00 budgeted for videography to hire a 

videographer to get some winter footage to use in online advertising. 

 

Button said that Thornapple Township Supervisor, and former DDA member, Jim Brown had died, and a 

sympathy card should be sent to the family on behalf of the DDA. 

 

Baker said the 2024 Jingle & Mingle was the biggest so far. 

 

Peterson asked if staff had received any feedback from downtown merchants on the salt free snow melt 

distributed by the DDA. 

11.  Open Public Comment and Discussion – None 

12.  Adjournment 

Motion by Wiswell, second by Hatfield, to adjourn. 

All ayes, motion carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:13 a.m. 

 

_______________________                                         ____________________________ 

 Patty Woods, Chair                                                          Deb Button, Secretary 

 

 

Prepared by: Sandra Ponsetto, City of Hastings 


	0_Executive Summary 2025 01 27.pdf
	4_Agenda 01 27 2025.pdf
	5_Minutes 2025 01 13.pdf
	9.A_Hastings Public Library Touch a Truck Event.pdf
	9.A_Hastings Public Library Touch a Truck Event.pdf
	9.A1_2025 Touch a Truck Event.pdf

	9.B_Council Goals Workshop Meeting.pdf
	10.B_Purchase of Wildland Protective Clothing.pdf
	10.C_YMCA Recreation Agreement 25-26.pdf
	10.C_YMCA Recreation Agreement 25-26.pdf
	10.C1.pdf

	10.D_Resolution 2025-01.pdf
	10.D_Resolution 2025-01.pdf
	10.D1.pdf
	10.C2_MDOT Agreement_24-5543.pdf

	11.A_Purchase Ordinance Amendment Consideration.pdf
	11.A_Purchase Ordinance Amendment Consideration.pdf
	11.A1.pdf
	11.A2.pdf

	12.A_Boulter Reports.pdf
	12.A_Boulter Report.pdf
	12.A1_Hastings Police Dept December 2024 Report.pdf
	12.A2.pdf
	12.A3.pdf

	12.B_12-31-24 Financial Statements.pdf
	12.C_CD Reports.pdf
	12.C_CD Reports.pdf
	12.C1.pdf

	13.A_DRAFT DDA Minutes 2025 01 16.pdf

